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Dear Mr. Faraci.

d herewith is a COPY of the above-referenced COMP LA,NT AND NO”CE
(E)rflfcgls:'?’ORTUNlTY FOR A HEARING (Complaint) directed to you on b'e'half of
Eastman Kodak Company, which is being filed for the purpose of proposing a
penalty pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.s.C.

§§ 7401 et seq., § 7413(d). The Complaint alleges violations of Sections 114,

608, and Title V of the Act. The total amount of the penalty proposed is
$255,612.

| direct your attention to the section of the Complaint entitled, “NOTICE OF
OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING.” If you wish to contest any of the allegations
of the Complaint or the amount of the proposed penalty, you must do so within
the time specified in the notice or you may lose the opportunity for a hearing.
You must file a written Answer to the Complaint within thirty (30) days of receipt,
as established by the Certified Mail Return Receipt, or EPA may file a motion for
default judgment. if the motion is granted, the proposed penalty will become due

and payable thirty (30) days after a final order. A copy of the procedural rules is
enclosed for reference.
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Counsel designated to appear on behalf of the Complainant in this matter is

Kara E. Murphy, who can be reached at (212) 637-3211 or by mail at the address
listed below. | call your attention to the section of the Complaint entitled,
“SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE.” EPA is prepared to begin to pursue settlement
of this matter immediately and | encourage you or your attorney, if you are
represented, to contact EPA counsel regardless of whether you are interested in
contesting this matter.

Sincerely,

e e F
T /

 Dore LaPosta, Director
* Division of Enforcement and
jance Assistance

Enclosures: COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

40 C.F.R. Part 22, Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or
Suspension of Permits.

Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy

Clean Air Act Penalty Policy for Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82,
Subpart F: Maintenance, Service, Repair, and Disposal of
Appliances Containing Refrigerant, Appendix X of the Clean Air
Act Penalty Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy

cc.  Regional Hearing Clerk (With: Original Complaint with Certificate of
Service and one copy of Complaint with Certificate of Service):

Karen Maples
Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Reglon 2
290 Broadway — 16" Floor
- New York, NY 10007-1866

Counsel on behalf of EPA:

Kara E. Murphy

Assistant Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway - 16" Floor

New York, NY 10007-1866



Robert Stanton, Director

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
‘625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Colleen McCarthy, Air Counsel

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Thomas Marriott, Regional Air Pollution Control Engineer

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519

Leo Bracci, Associate Attorney

Legal Affairs

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519
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Mark E. Miles

Health, Safety and Environment
5" Floor, Building 56, Kodak Park
Eastman Kodak Company
Rochester, NY 14652-4543

Re: COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING
In the matter of: Eastman Kodak Company, CAA-02-2009-1212

Dear Mr. Miles:

Enclosed herewith is a copy of the above-referenced COMPLAINT AND NOTICE
OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING (Complaint) directed to you on behalf of
Eastman Kodak Company, which is being filed for the purpose of proposing a
penalty pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.

§§ 7401 et seq., § 7413(d). The Complaint alleges violations of Sections 114,
608, and Title V of the Act. The total amount of the penalty proposed is
$255,612.

| direct your attention to the section of the Complaint entitled, “NOTICE OF
OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING.” If you wish to contest any of the allegations
of the Complaint or the amount of the proposed penalty, you must do so within
the time specified in the notice or you may lose the opportunity for a hearing.
You must file a written Answer to the Complaint within thirty (30) days of receipt,
as established by the Certified Mail Return Receipt, or EPA may file a motion for
default judgment. If the motion is granted, the proposed penaity will become due
and payable thirty (30) days after a final order. A copy of the procedural rules is
enclosed for reference.
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Counsel designated to appear on behalf of the Complainant in this matter is

Kara E. Murphy, who can be reached at (212) 637-3211 or by mail af the address
listed below. | call your attention to the section of the Complaint entitled,
“SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE.” EPA is prepared to begin to pursue settlement
of this matter immediately and | encourage you or your attorney, if you are
represented, to contact EPA counsel regardless of whether you are interested in
contesting this matter.

Sincerely,

IR |

Dore[aPosta, Director |
( Division of Enforcement and
\Compfliance Assistance

Enclosures: COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

40 C.F.R. Part 22, Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or
Suspension of Permits.

Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy

Clean Air Act Penalty Policy for Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82,
Subpart F: Maintenance, Service, Repair, and Disposal of
Appliances Containing Refrigerant, Appendix X of the Clean Air
Act Penalty Stationary Source Civil Penaity Policy

cc:  Regional Hearing Clerk (With: Original Complaint with Certificate of
Service and one copy of Complaint with Certificate of Service):

Karen Maples

Regional Hearing Clerk

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway — 16™ Floor

New York, NY 10007-1866

Counsél on behalf of EPA:

Kara E. Murphy

Assistant Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway — 16™ Floor ‘

New York, NY 10007-1866



CC.

Robert Stanton, Director

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Colleen McCarthy, Air Counsel

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Thomas Marriott, Regional Air Pollution Control Engineer

New York State Department of Env1ronmenta| Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519

Leo Bracci, Associate Attorney

Legal Affairs

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519
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Dr. Jeffrey R. Neff )
Director, Global Capture Flow ‘ D <

Director, Kodak Rochester Sites
Vice President, Film Products Group
343 State Street

Rochester, NY 14650

Re: COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING
In the matter of: Eastman Kodak Company, CAA-02-2009-1212

Dear Dr. Neff:

Enclosed herewith is a copy of the above-referenced COMPLAINT AND NOTICE
OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING (Complaint) directed to you on behaif of
Eastman Kodak Company, which is being filed for the purpose of proposing a
penalty pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.

§§ 7401 et seq., § 7413(d). The Complaint alleges violations of Sections 114,
608, and Title V of the Act. The total amount of the penalty proposed is
$255,612.

| direct your attention to the section of the Cornplaint entitled, “NOTICE OF
OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING.” If you wish to contest any of the allegations
of the Complaint or the amount of the proposed penalty, you must do so within
the time specified in the notice or you may lose the opportunity for a hearing.
You must file a written Answer to the Complaint within thirty (30) days of receipt,
as established by the Certified Mail Return Receipt, or EPA may file a motion for
default judgment. If the motion is granted, the proposed penalty will become due

and payable thirty (30) days after a final order. A copy of the procedural rules is
enclosed for reference.
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Counsel designated to appear on behalf of the Complainant in this matter is

Kara E. Murphy, who can be reached at (212) 637-3211 or by mail at the address
listed below. | call your attention to the section of the Complaint entitled,
“SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE.” EPA is prepared to begin to pursue settlement
of this matter immediately and | encourage you or your attorney, if you are
represented, to contact EPA counsel regardless of whether you are interested in
contesting this matter.

Sincerely,

Dore LaPo \‘ta, Director
Division of Enforcement and
Co fance Assistance

Enclosures: COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

40 C.F.R. Part 22, Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or
Suspension of Permits.

Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy

Clean Air Act Penalty Policy for Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82,
Subpart F: Maintenance, Service, Repair, and Disposal of
Appliances Containing Refrigerant, Appendix X of the Clean Air
.Act Penalty Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy

cc:. Regional Hearing Clerk (With: Original Complaint with Certificate of
Service and one copy of Complaint with Certificate of Service):

Karen Maples

Regional Hearing Clerk

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway — 16" Floor

New York, NY 10007-1866

Counsel on behalf of F_PA:

Kara E. Murphy

Assistant Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway — 16" Fioor

New York, NY 10007-1866



Robert Stanton, Director

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Colleen McCarthy, Air Counsel

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Thomas Marriott, Regional Air Pollution Control Engineer

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519

Leo Bracci, Associate Attorney

Legal Affairs

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 2
In re: COMPLAINT
and
EASTMAN KODAK COMPANY NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY
Respondent TO REQUEST A HEARING _
— 3 }?
In a proceeding under CAA-02-2009-121287 & Ze
Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act 5 So Sm
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Complaint SEA T SE
% o i3
; . . . - B b
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issues this = ~ 57
DO

Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (Complaint) to Eastman Kodak
Company (Respondent) for violations of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et
seq. (CAA or the Act), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), Section 113(d) of the Act, and
proposes the assessment of penalties in accordance with the Consolidated Rules
of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
40 C.F.R. Part 22 (Consolidated Rules of Practice). The Complainant in the
matter, the Director of the Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance
(DECA), EPA Region 2, is duly delegated the authority to issue administrative
Complaints on behalf of EPA Region 2, which includes the State of New York,

the State of New Jersey, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the Territory of
the U.S. Virgin Islands.

CAA-02-2009-1212



In this Complaint, EPA alleges that Respondent’s Kodak Park facility
located in Rochester, Naw York (Facility), with a mailing address of 343 State
Street, Rochester, New York 14650, violated requirements or prohibitions of |
Section 608, 42 U.S.C. § 7671(g) of the Act, the emission standards for the
servicing and disposal of air conditioning or refrigeration equipment containing
ozone depleting refrigerants, 40 C.F.R. Part 82, Subpart F, 40 C.F.R. § 82.150 et
seq. (CFC Regulations), and the Faciiity’s Title V Operating Permit, which
includes the CFC Regulations as applicable requirements.

On March 16, 2009, the Department of Justice (DOJ) granted EPA’s

request for a waiver of the time limitation provided in Section 113(d) of the Act.

Statutory, Requlatory, and Permitting Background

1. Section 113(a)(3) of the Act authorizes the Administrator of EPA
to issue an administrative penalty order, in accordance with Section 113(d) of the
Act, against any person that has violated or is in violation of the Act.

2. Section 114(a)(1) of the Act authorizes the Administrator to
require owners or operators of emission sources to submit specific information
regardihg facilities, establish and maintain records, make reports, sample
emission points, and to install, use and rnaintain such monitoring equipment or
methods in order to determine whether any person is in violation of the Act.

3.  Section 302(e) of the Act defines the term “person” as an
individual, corppration, partnership, association, state, municipality, political

subdivision of a State, and any agency, department, or instrumentality of the

CAA-02-2009-1212 2



United States and'any officer, agent, or employee thereof.

4. Title VI of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7671-7671q (Stratospheric
Ozone Protection), implements the Montreal Protocol on Substances that
Deplete the Ozone Layer, and mandates the elimination or control of emissions
of ozone depleting substances which are known or suspected to cause or
significantly contribute to harmful effects on the stratospheric ozone layer,
referred to as class | and cl\‘ass Il substances.

5. Section 608 of the Act (National Recycling and Emission
Reduction Program) requires that EPA promulgate regulations establishing
standards and requirements for the use and disposal of class | and class |l
ozone-depleting substances (or class | or class Il refrigerants) during the service,
repair, or disposal of appliances and industrial process refrigeration (IPR)
appliances. The regulations shall include requirements that: reduce the use and
emission of class | and class Il refrigerants to the lowest achievable level; and
maximize the recapture and recycling of class | and class Il refrigerants during
the service, maintenance, repair, and disposal of appliances.

6. Section 602 of the Act required the EPA administrator to publish a
list of “class 11" substances within 60 days of November i5, 1990 and that
hydrochlorofluorocarbon (HCFC-22, also known as R-22) be included in that list.

7. EPA promulgated ‘40 C.F.R. Part 82, Subpart F, §§ 82.150 et seq.
(CFC Regulatibns), pursuant to Sections 114 and 608, on May 14, 1993 (58 Fed.

Reg. 28,660), and these regulations were revised on July 24, 2003.

CAA-02-2009-1212 3



8.  The CFC Regulations are applicable to, among other things, any
person servicing, maintaining, or repairing appliances, and to persons disposing
of appliances, including small appliances and motor vehicle air conditioners.

40 C.F.R. § 82.150(b).

9. Section 601(1) of the CAA defines “appliance” as any device that
contains and uses a class Iv or class Il substance as a refrigerant for commercial
purposes, including any air conditioner, refrigerator, chiller, or freezer.

10. Section 601(3) defines “class | substance” as each of the
substances listed in Section 602(a) of the CAA.

11.  Section 601(4) defines “class Il substance” as each of the
substances listed in Section 602(b) of the CAA.

12. Section 608 of the CAA states that it shall be unlawful for any
person, in the course of maintaining, servicing, repairing, or disposirng of an
appiiance or IPR, to knowingly vent or knowingly release or dispose of any
class | or class Il refrigerant in such applianc_e in a manner which permits such
refrigerant to enter the environment. |

13. The CFC Regulations reiterate the prohibition in Section 608 of
the CAA. 40 C.F.R. § 82.154(a), see also 58 Fed. Reg. 28,714.

14. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 defines “refrigerant” as any substance
consisting in part or whole of a class | or class |l ozone-depleting substance that
is used for heat transfer purposes and prbvides a cooling effect.

15. In accordance with Section 602 of the Act, 40 C.F.R. Part 82,

Subpart A, Appendix B lists monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22), which is

CAA-02-2009-1212 4



also known as a hydrochloroﬂuorocarb‘on, or R-22, as a class Il controlied
substance.

16. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 deﬁnes “‘industrial process refrigeration” as
complex customized appliances used in the chemical, pharmaceutical,
petrochemical, and manufacturing industries.

17. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 defines “industrial process shutdown” to
mean, for purposes of § 82.156(i) that an industrial process or facility temporarily
ceases to operate or manufacture whatever is being produced at that facility.

18. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 defines “leak rate” as the rate at which an
appliance is losing refrigerant, measured between refrigerant charges. Only one
out of the two methods listed can be used. |

19. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 defines “initial verification test” as those leak
tests that are conducted as soon as practicable after the repair is completed.
There are two (2) types of initial verification tests: a) With regard to the leak
repairs that require the evacuation of the appliance or portion of the appliance: a
test is conducted prior to the replacement of the full refrigerant charge and before
the appliance or portion of the appliance has reached operation at normal
operating characteristics and conditions of temperature and pressure; and
b) With regard to repairs conducted without the evacuatibn of the refrigerant
charge: a test conducted as soon as practicable after the conclusion of repair
work.

20. 40 C.F.R. § 82.152 defines “follow-up v‘erificativon test” as tests

that involve checking the repairs within thirty (30) days of the appliance’s

CAA-02-2009-1212 5



returning to normal operating characteristics and conditions. Follow-up
verification tests for appliances from which the refrigerant charge has been
evacuated means a test conducted after the appliance or portion of the appliance
has resumed operation at normal operating characteristics and conditions of
temperature and pressure, except in cases where sound professional judgment
dictates that these tests will be more meaningful if performed prior to the return to
normal operating characteristics and conditions. A follow-up verification test with
reépect to repairs conducted without evacuation of the refrigerant charge means
a re-verification tést conducted after the initial verification test and usually within
thirty (30) days of normal operating conditions. Where an appliance is not
evacuated, it is only necessary to conclude any required changes in pressure,
temperature or other conditions to return the appliance to normal operating
characteristics and conditions.

21. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2), owners or operators of IPR
normally containing more than fifty (50) pounds of refrigerant, except asv
described in (i)(6), (7) and (10) and (i)(2)(i) and (ii}, must have leaks repaired if
an appliance is leaking at a rate such that the loss of refrigerant will exceed 35%
of the total charge during a 12-month period, within thirty (30) days after
discovery of the leak, or within thirty (30) days after when the leak should have
been discovered (if the owner intentionally shielded themselves from information
that would reveal the leak) unless granted additional time pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 82.156(i).

CAA-02-2009-1212 6



22. Pursuantto 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2), where the annualized leak
rate of an IPR exceeds 35% of the total charge during a 12-month period, the
owners or operators of the IPR must have the leaks repaired to bring the leak
rate to below 35% during a 12-rnonth period within thirty (30) days (or 120 days,
where an industrial process shutdown in accordance with 40 C.F.R.

§ 82.156(i)(2)(ii) is required).

23. 40CFR.§ 82.156(i)(2)(i) sets forth requirements in the event
that necessary parts are unavailable or if requirements of other applicable
federal, state, or local regulations make a repair within thirty (30) or 120 days
impossible.

24. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2)(ii), owners or operators of
IPRs will have a 120-day repair period, rather than 30-day repair period, to repair
leaks in instances where an industrial process shutdown is needed to repair a
leak or leaks from the IPR.

25. Pursuantto 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2), if the owners or operators of
an IPR determine that the leak rate cannot be brought to below 35% during a 12-
month period within 30 days (or 120 days, where an industrial process shutdown
in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2)(ii) is required) and in accordance
with 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(9) and determine that an extension in accordance with
40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i) applies, the owner or operators of the IPR must document
all repair efforts, and notify EPA of the reason for the inability in accordance with

40 C.F.R. § 82.166(n) within 30 days of making this determination.

CAA-02-2009-1212 7



26. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3), when an industrial process
shutdown has occurred or when repairs have been made while an appliance is
mothballed, the owners or operators must conduct an initial verification test at the
conclusion of the repairs and a follow-up verification test. The follow-up
| verification test must be conducted within thirty (30) days of completing the
repairs or within thirty (30) days of bringing the appliance back on-line, if taken
off-line, but no sooner than when the appliance has achieved normal operating
characteristics and conditions.

27. Puréuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3), when repairs have been
conducted without an IPR shutdown or system mothballing, an initial verification
test must be conducted upon conclusion of repairs and a follow-up verification
leak test must be conducted within thirty (30) days following the initial verification
test. The follow-up verification test must be conducted at normal operating
characteristics and conditions unless as otherwise specified in § 82.156(i)(3).

28. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3)(i), owners or operators of
IPRs that take the appliance off-line cannot bring fhe appliance back on-line until
an initial verification test indicates that the repairs undertaken in accordance with
40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2)(i) or (i)(2)(ii), have been successfully compféted,
demonstrating the leak or leaks are repaired.

29. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k), owners/operators of IPRs
normally containing fifty (50) pounds or more of refrigerant must keep seNicing
records documenting the date and type of service, as well as the quantity of

refrigerant added. The owner/operator must keep records of refrigerant

CAA-02-2009-1212 8



purchased and added to such appliances in cases where owners add their own
refrigerant. Such records should indicate the date(s) when refrigerant is added.

30. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(m), all records required to be
maintained must be kept for a minimum bf three years, unless otherwise
indicated.

31.. The owner or operator of IPRs must file a report explaining why
rmore than thirty days is needed to complete repairs that must meet the
specifications provided in 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(n).

32. Section 502(a) of the Act provides, among other things, that after
the effective date of any permit prbgram approved or promulgated pursuant to
Title V of the Act, it shall be unlawful for any person to violate any requirement of
a permit issued under Title V of the Act or to operate a Title V affected source,
except in compliance with a permit issued by a permitting authority under Title V
of the Act.

33. Section 502(b) Qf the Act requires EPA to promulgate regulations
establishing the minimurn elements of a permit program to be administered by
any air pollution control agency and set forth the procedures by which EPA will
approve, oversee, and withdraw approval of state operating permit programs.

34. 40 C.F.R. Part 70, promulgated pursuant to Title V of the Act,
among other things, sets forth corresponding minimum requirements for state
operating permit programs.

35. 40 C.F.R. Part 71 sets forth the comprehensive federal air quality

operating permit program consistent with the requirements of Title V of the Act,

CAA-02-2009-1212 9



and defines the requirements and the corresponding procedures by which EPA
will issue Title V operating pérmits.

36. Section 502(d)(1) of the Act requires each State to develop and
submit to the Administrator a permit program meeting the requirements of Title V
of the Act.

37. In accordance with Section 502(d)(1) of the Act, New York
developéd and submitted 6 NYCRR Chapter Ill Part 201 (the New York Title V
Operating Permit Prograrn) to mee‘t the requirements of Title V of the Act and
40 C.F.R. Part 70, promulgated to Section 502(b) of the Act.

38. EPA granted interim approval of the New York Title V Operating
Permit Program on December 9, 1996, 61 Fed. Reg. 57,589 (Nov. 7, 1996), and
granted full approval of the program on Febrﬁary 5,2002. 67 Fed. Reg. 5,216
(Feb. 5, 2002).

39. Section 504(a) of the Act and the New York Title V Operating
Permit Progvram regulations have at all relevant times required that each permit
issued pursuant to Title V shall include, among other things, enforceable
emission limitations and such other conditions as are necessary to assure
compliance with applicable requirements of the Act and the requirements of the
applicable implementation plan.

40. Section 503(b)(2) of the Act provides that the regulations
promulgated pursuant to Section 502(b) of the Act shall include requirements that
the permittee periodically (but no less frequently than annually) certify that its

facility is in compliance with any applicable requirements of the Title V Operating

CAA-02-2009-1212 10



Permit and that the permittee promptly report any deviations from the operating
permit requirements to the permitting authority.

41. 6 NYCRR 201-6.5(c)(2), a p.rovision iﬁ the NYS Title V Operating
Permit Program, requires records of all monitoring data and support information
must be retained for a period of at least five years from the date of the
monitoring, sampling, measurement, report, or application. Support information
includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip-chart
recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, all quality assurance
information and copies of all reports required by the permit.

42. 6 NYCRR 201-6.5(é), a provision in the NYS Title V Operating
Permit Program, requires that sources certify compliance annually and submit
annual certifications to both the permitting agency, New York State Department
of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC), and EPA.

43. On February 20, 2003, NYSDEC issued the Facility a Title V
Operating Permit, # 8-2614-0025/01801.

44. Condition 25 of Respondent’s Title V Operating Permit includes
the CFC Regulations as applicable requirements.

45. Condition 11 of Respondent’s Title V Operating Permit includes
6 NYCRR 201-6.5(0}(2) as an applicable requirement requiring Respondent to
keep records of all monitoring data and support information must be retained for
a period of at least 5 years from the date of the monitoring, sampling,
measurement, report, or application. Support information includes all calibration

and maintenance records and all original strip-chart recordings for continuous

CAA-02-2009-1212 11



monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports required by the Facility’s
Title V Operating Permit.

46. Condition 2-18 of Respondent’s Title V Operating Permit includes
6 NYCRR 201-6.5(e) as an applicable requiremént requiring Respondent to

submit annual certifications to NYSDEC and EPA.

Findings of Fact

47. Paragraphs 1 — 46 are realleged and incorporated herein by
reference.

48. Respondent is a corporation duly organized under the laws of
New York.

49. Respondent ié the owner and/or operator of the Kodak Park
Facility located in Rochester, New York.

50. On January 31, 2007, EPA sent Respondent an information
request pursuant to Section 114 of the Act (Section 114 Letter).

51. In the Section 114 Letter, EPA requested, among other things,
that Respondent provide its IPR service records for years 2002 through 2007.

52. On February 23, 2007, Respondent spoke to EPA and requested
-an extension of time to submit its respbnse to the Section 114 Letter.

53. By letter dated February 23, 2007, Respondent formally
requested a thirty (30) day extension, until April 9, 2007, if necessary, to brovide

responses to the Section 114 Letter.
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54, On March 9, 2007, Respondent fesponded to'the Section 114
Letter (Initial 114 Response).

55. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response included.“requested [ozone
depleting substance] information from [Respondent’s] Kodak Park site-wide
Utilities and Building Services departments.”

56. By Ietter dated March 26, 2007, EPA granted Respondent'’s
request for an extension 'of time (EPA Extension Letter).

57. Inthe EPA Extension Letter, EPA stated that it received
Respondent’s Initial 114 Response.

58. In the EPA Extension Letter, EPA stated that “[a]ny requested
information that was not provided in the [Initial 114 Response] is to be sent for
receipt by EPA on or before April 9, 2007.”

59. On April 5, 2007, Respondent filed another set of responses to
the Section 114 Letter (Second 114 Response).

60. Respondent’s Second‘ 114 Response included “the rest of the
operating departments at Kodak Park with refrigeration equipment containing
more than 50Ilbs of [ozone depleting substance] material.”

61. EPA performed a detailed analysis of the service records
provided by Respondent in its Initial 114 Response and its Second 114

Response (EPA File Review).
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Indusfrial Refrigeration Machine Unit 11 (Unit 11)

62. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent provided service records
. for Industrial Refrigeration Machine 11 (Unit 11).

63. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent included Appendix 10,
entitled, “Available Kodak Park [ozone depleting substance] Equipment
Inventories.”

64. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response, Appendix 10 lists Unit 11 as
an appliance at the Facility.

65. Respondent’s Initial 114 .Response, Appendix 10 lists Unit 11 as
an IPR.

66. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response, Appendix 10 indicates that
~ Unit 11 has a full charge of 7,500 pounds of R-22.

67. In additioh, the service records provided for Unit 11 in the Initial
114 Response has a full charge of 7,500 pounds of HCFC-22 (or R-22).

68. In the Initial 114 Response for Unit 11, Respondent provided a
Service Record Form, which was issued on July 25, 2004 and cbmpleted on
‘October 28,2004, indicating that the “[r]efrigerant leak detector went off near
#11u. [S]uspected leak on unit.”

69. A “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on July 25, 2004 and completed on October 28,
2004, indicates that on July 25, 2004 Respondent pushed the R-22 charge from

Unit 11 into a storage tank.
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70. A “Refrigerant Work Record Log" report, included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on July 25, 2004 and completed on October 28,
2004, indicates that on July 25, 2004 Respondent pumped down Unit 11.

71. A “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on July 25, 2004 and completed on October 28,
2004, indicates that on October 4, 2004 Respondent charged Unit 11.
| | 72. A “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on July 25, 2004 and completed on October 28,
2004, does not dpcument how much R-22 was added on October 4, 2004 to
Unit 11.

73. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records

documenting how much R-22 was added on October 4, 2004 to Unit 11.

Industrial Refrigeration Machine Unit 26 (Unit 26)

74. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent provided service records
for Industrial Refrigeration Machine Unit 26 (Unit 26).

75. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent included Appendix 10,
entitled, “Available Kodak Park ODS Equipment Inventories.”

76. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response, Appendix 10 lists Unit 26 as
an appliance at the Facility.

77. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response, Appendix 10 lists Unit 26 as

an IPR.
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78. Respondent’s Initial 114 Response, Appendix 10 indicates that
Unit 26 has a full charge of 9,600 pounds of R-22.

79. In addition, the séNice records provided for Unit 26 in the Initial
114 Response has a full charge of 9,600 pounds of HCFC-22 (or R-22).

80. In the Initial 114 Response for Unit 26, Respondent provided a
Service Record Form, which was issued on April 12, 2004 and completed on
March 9, 2005, indicating that on February 9, 2005 Respondent found a leak of
R-22 for Unit 26.

81. An “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, indicates that on April 12, 2004
Respondent found a leak of R-22 for Unit 26.

82. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, indicates that on April 12, 2004
Respondent added 600 pounds of R-22 to Unit 26.

83. Inthe Initial 114 Response for Unit 26, Respondent provided a
Service Record Form, which was issued on February 19, 2004 and completed on
February 22, 2004, indicating that on February 20, 2004 Respondent added
1,308 pounds of R-22 to Unit 26.

84. During the EPA File Review, EPA calculated the leak rate for the
April 12, 2004 R-22 addition to Unit 26, based on information provided in the

Service Record Form, which was issued on April 12, 2004 and completed on

CAA-02-2009-1212 16



March 9, 2005, at 44%.

85. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, indicates that the annual leak
rate calculation was 43.8% for Unit 26.

8_6. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
- 2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and compléted on March 9, 2005, states that “[w]e believe there is
a small leak on the [ ] Refrigerant Low Side and when we purge the air from the
unit we are losing a small amount of refrigerant from the unit. At this time we are
unable to remove this unit from service because of production demands on the
-95 degree system.”

87. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, does not indicate that
Respondent conducted a leak repair on Uhit 26 for the leak found on April 12,
2004.

88. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, does not indicate that
Respondent conducted an }initial verification test to Unit 26 for the leak found on

April 12, 2004.
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89. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any éervice records
| for Unit 26 indicating that Respondent conducted an initial verification test for the
leak found on April 12, 2004.

90. The “Environmental Incident Report,” Incident Number
2004-0685, included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
April 12, 2004 and completed on March 9, 2005, does not indicate that
Respondent conducted a follow-up verification test to Unit 26 after an initial
verification test for the leak found on April 12, 2004.

9/‘1. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
for Unit 26 indicating that Respondent conducted a follow-up verification test after
an initial verification test for the leak found on April 12, 2004.

92. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Service Record Form, which was issued on April 12, 2004 and completed on
March 9, 2005, indicates that on March 5, 2005 Respondent added 2,000 pounds
of R-22 to Unit 26.

93. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Refrigerant
Work Record Log” report, included with the Service Record Form, issued
May 10, 2005 and completed June 2, 2005, indicating that on June 2, 2005
Respondent added 700 pounds of R-22 to Unit 26.

94. In the Initial 114 Response for Unit 26, Respondent provided a
Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicating that on February 2, 2006 Respondent added R-22 to

Unit 26.
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95. The Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25,
2006 and completed on July 20, 2006, does not document how much R-22 was
added to Unit 26, on February 2, 2006.

96. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
documenting how much R-22 Respondent added to Unit 26 on February 2, 2006.

97. The Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25,
2006 and completed on July 20, 2006, indicates that on February 25, 2006
Respondent found a leak of R-22 for Unit 26.

98’. The Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25,
2006 and completed on July 20, 2006, indicates that on February 25, 2006
Respondent added 610 pounds of R-22 to Unit 26,

99. During the EPA File Review, EPA calculated the leak rate for the‘
February 25, 2006 R-22 addition to Unit 26, based on the information provided in
the Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and
completed on July 20, 2006, at 101%.

100. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Refrigerant
Work Record Log,” included with the Service Record Form, which was issued on
February 25, 2006 and completed on July 20, 2006, indicating that on March 2,
2006 Respondent dropped Unit 26's charge to a storage tank and pumped
Unit 26 to zero.

101. In the Initial 114 Response, Respondent prdvided a “Refrig Leak
Check Log,” included with the Service Record Formn, which was issued on

February 25, 2006 and completed on July 20, 2006, indicating that Respondent
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conducted sixteen (16) leak repairs on Unit 26 from March 7, 2006Ato June 21,
2006.

102. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log,” included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on July 20,
2006, indicates that on June 28, 2006 Respondent conducted a leak repair on
Unit 26.

103. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log,” included with the Service
Record Form, which was issued on February 25, ‘2006 and completed on July 20,
2006, indicates that on June 28, 200‘6} Respondent “warmed up unit and found #1
and #2 comp min flow valve packings leaking. [Respondent] [tlighten[ed] both
packings” for Unit 26,

104. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Séwice Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicates that on July 20, 2006 Respondent added 970 pounds of
R-22 to Unit 26.

105. The Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Service Record Fofm, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicates that on July 20, 2006 the “unit charge is topped off” for
Unit 26.

106. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicates that on July 21, 2006 Respondent put Unit 26 back on-

line.
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107. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicétes that Respondent did not conduct an initial verification
fest on Unit 26 after the final repair on June 28, 2006 for the February 25, 2006
leak.

108. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
indicating that Respondent conducted an initial verification test on Unit 26 after
the final repair on June 28, 2006 for the February 25, 2006 leak.

109. The “Refrigerant Work Record Log” report, included with the
Service Record Form, which was issued on February 25, 2006 and completed on
July 20, 2006, indicates that Respondent did not conduct a follow-up verification
test on Unit 26 within thirty (30) days of completing the repair on June 28, 2006
or within thirty (30) days of bringing the appliance back on-line for the leak found
on February 25, 2006.

110. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
indicating that Respondént conducted a follow-up verification test on Unit 26
within thirty (30) days of cormnpleting the repair on June 28, 2006 or within thirty
(30) days of brining the appliance back on-line for the leak found on February 25,
2006.

111. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
indicating that Respondent conducted a follow-up verification on Unit 26 under

normal operating characteristics and conditions.
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Chilled Water Chiller for Reactor Jackets, Circuit #2 (Chilled Water
Chiller Unit, Circuit #2)

112. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided service
records for Chilled Water Chiller for Reactor Jackets, Circuit #2 (Chilled Water
Chiller Unit, Circuit #2).

113. Inthe Secbnd 114 Response, Respondent included Appendix 10,
entitled, “Kodak Park [ozone depleting substance] Equipment Inventories.”

114. Respondent’'s Second 114 Response, Appendix 10 lists the
Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 as an appliance at the Facility.

115. Respondent’s Second 114 Response, Appendix 10 lists the
Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 as an IPR.

116. Respondent’'s Second 114 Response, Appendix 10 indicates that
the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 has a full charge of 130 pounds of R-22.

117. Respondent’'s Second 114 Response indicates that Respondent
receives contract service for the Facility’s appliances from eleven (11)
companies.

118. Respondent’s Second 114 Response indicates that one of
Respondent’s contractors is Trane.

119. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane

Service Report,” number 06-0758671 dated May 5, 2006, indicating that on May
| 5, 2006 Respondent'’s contractor, Trane, added 105 pounds of R-22 to the

Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.
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120. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Service Report,” number 06-0758671 dated May 8, 2006, indicating that on
May 8, 2006 Respondent’s contractor, Trane, added R-22 to the Chilled Water
Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

121. The “Trane Service Report,” number 06-0758671 dated
May 8, 2006, does not document the amount of R-22 added on May 8, 2006 to
the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,v Circuit #2.

122. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
documenting how much R-22 was added on May 8, 2006 to the Chilled Water
Chiller Unit, Circuit #2. |

123. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Field Report,” page number 32496 dated August 11, 2006, indicating that
Respondent’s contractor, Trane, “worked on recovering refrigerant from circuit
#2, to prepare for leak check” for the Chilled Water Chiller, Circuit #2.

124. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Field Report,” page number 32497 dated August 11, 2006, indicating that
Respondent’s contractor, Trane, recovered 63 pounds of R-22 from the Chilled-
Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

125. During the EPA File Review, EPA determined that on August 11,
2006 Respondent lost 67 pounds of R-22, based on the information provided in
the “Trane Fiéld Report,” page number 32497 dated August 11, 2006.

| 126. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane

Field Report, page number 32503 dated August 14 — August 18, 2006, indicating
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that Respondent’s contractor, Trane, conducted a leak check for the Chilled
Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

127. The “Trane Field Report,” page nunﬁber 32503 dated August 14 —
August 18, 2006, indicates that Respondent's contractor, Trane, made repairs to
the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

128. The “Trahe Field Report,” page number 32503 dated August 14 -
August 18, 2006, indicates that Respondent’s contractor, Trane, “[rlemoved relief
valve, changed drier cores, installed test ports . . . [iJnstalled new pressure relief
valve, and ref. temp sensors . . : [and] [r]leplaced hi-press safety cut-out control”
to the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

129. The “Trane Field Report,” page number 32503 dated August 14 —
August 18, 2006, indicates that Respondent’s contractor, Trane, set the system
for an overnight vacuum test.

130. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Field Report,” page number 32504 dated August 14 — August 18, 2006,
indicating that on Thursday Respondent"s contractor, Trane, added 120 pounds
of R-22 to the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

131. The “Tréne Field Report,” page number 32504 dated August 14 —~
August 18, 2006, indicates that on Friday the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,
Circuit #2 lost 67 pounds of R-22.

132. During the EPA File Review, EPA determined that on August 17,
2006 Respondent’s contractor, Trane, added 67 pounds of R-22 to the Chilled

Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 based on the “Trane F‘ield Report,” page number
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32504 dated August 14 — August 18, 2006.

133. During the EPA File Review, EPA calculated the leak rate for the
August 17, 2006 R-22 addition to the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2, based
on the information provided in the “Trane Field Report,” page number 32504 |
dated August 14 — August 18, 2006, at 186%.

134. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
| Field Report,” page number 32110 dated August 21 — August 23, 2006,
indicating that Respondent’s contractor, Trane, checked and adjusted the oil
separator oil level for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

135. In the Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Field Report,” page number 32360 dated August 21 — August 23, 2006,
indicating that Respondent’s contractor, Trane, continued working on the Chilled
Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

136. Inthe Second 114 Response, Respondent provided a “Trane
Field Report,” page number 32498 dated August 21, 2006, indicating that
Respondent’s contractor, Trane, had “problems with modules and adjusting R-22
charge” for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

137. During the EPA File Review, EPA determined that Respondent
did not find service records other than the “Trane Field Report,” page number
32498 dated August 21, 2006 for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,
Circuit #2.

138. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records

indicating that Respondent conducted a follow-up verification test on the Chilled
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Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 within thirty (30) days of completing the repair or
within thirty (30) days of bringing the appliance on-line, based on the information
provided in the “Trane Field Report,” page number 32503 dated August 14 —
August 18, 2006.

139. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
indicating that Respondent conducted a follow-up verification test within thirty
(30) days of completing the repair or within thirty (30) days of bringing the
appliance on-line for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2.

140. During the EPA File Review, EPA did not find any service records
indicating that Respondent conducted a follow-up verification under normal
operating characteristics and conditions on the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,

Circuit #2.

Title V Annual Compliance Certifications

141. In the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit 2006 annual compliance
certification, Respondent certified that the Facility is in compliance with Condition
25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit, which includes the CFC Regulations

as applicable requirements.

Count 1
142. Paragraphs 1-141 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.

143. Respondent is a "person" within the meaning of Section 302(e) of
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the Act.

144. Respondent’s Facility is subject to the CFC Regulations,
promulgated pursuant to Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

145. Respondent’s Facility is subject to the conditions in its Title V
Operating Permit. |

146. Respondent is subject to the assessment of administrative
penalties pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Act.

147. Respondent, as owner and operator of Unit 11, an IPR normally
containing more than fifty (50) pounds of a class Il refrigerant, R-22, is subject to
40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2).

148. Respondent'’s failure to document how much R-22 was added to
Unit 11 on October 4, 2004, in its “Refrigerant Work Record Log,” is a violation of
40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and Condition 25 of the Facility’'s Title V Operating Permit. |

149. Respondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

150. Respondent's violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Permit Program and

Title V of the Act.

Count 2
151. Paragraphs 1-150 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.

152. Respondent, as owner and operator of Unit 26, an IPR normally
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containing more than fifty (50) pounds of class Il refrigerant, R-22, is subject to
40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2).

1563. Respondent'’s failure to repair Unit 26 for the April 12, 2004 leak,
which was above 35% of the total charge during a 12-month period, to bring the
leak rate below 35% during a 12-month period within thirty (30) days (or 120
days, where an industrial process shutdown is needed) is a violation of 40 C.F.R.
§ 82.156(i)(2) and Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating.Permit.

154. Reépondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2) is a violation of
Section 608 of the Act.

1565. Respondent’s violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count 3

156. Paragraphs 1-155 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.

1567. Respondent’s failure to conduct an initial verification test on
Unit 26 for the April 12, 2004 leak, which was above 35% of the total charge
during a 12-month period, is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and Condition
25 of the Facilify’s Title V Operating Permit. |

1568. Respondent'’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) is a violation of

Sections 114 and 608 of thve Act.

CAA-02-2009-1212 | 28



159. Respondent’s violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
- Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count 4

160. Paragraphs 1-159 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.

161. Respondent'’s failure to conduct a follow-up verification test on
Unit 26 for the April 12, 2004 leak, which was above 35% of the total charge
during a 12-month period, is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and Condition
25 of the Facility’s Title V Operaﬁng Permit.

162. Respondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

163. Respondent’s violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count s
164. Paragraphs 1-163 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.
1‘65. Respondent's failure to document how much R-22 was added to
Unit 26 on February 2, 2006 in its Service Record Form is a violation of

40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit.
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166. Respondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act. |
167. Respondent's violation of Condition 25 of the Fac'ility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count 6

168. Paragraphs 1-167 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein.

169. On February 25, 2006, Respondent’s Unit 26 Ieaked R-22 above
35% of the total charge during a 12-month period subject to 40 C.F.R.
§ 82.156(i)(2). ,

170. Respondent performed a leak repair for the February 25, 2006
leak on June 28, 2006 pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2).

171. Respondent’s failure to conduct an initial verification test on
Unit 26 for the February 25, 2006 leak, which was above 35% of the total charge
during a 12-month period, is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and Condition
25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit.

172. Respondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2) ié a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

173. Respondent'’s violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.
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Count 7

174. Paragraphs 1-173 are repeated and re-aIIeged as if set forth fully
herein.

175. Respondent’s failure to conduct a follow-up verification test on
Unit 26 for the February 25, 2006 leak, which was above 35% of the total charge
during a 12-month period, is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and Condition
25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit.

176. Respondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

177. Respondent's violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count 8

178. Paragraphé 1-177 are repeated and re-alleged as if set forth fully
herein. | |

179. Respondent, owner and operator of the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,
Circuit #2, an IPR normally containing more than fifty (50) pounds of a class Il
refrigerant, R-22, is subject to 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2).

180. Respondent’s failure to document how much R-22 was added to
the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 on May 8, 2006 is a violation of

40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit.
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181. Respondent's violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

182. Respondent’s violation of Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V
~ Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V

of the Act.

Count9

183. Paragraphs 1-182 are repeéted and re-alleged és if set forth fully
herein.

184. Respondent’s failure to conduct a follow-up verification test to the
Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 for the August 17, 2006 leak, which was
above 35% of the total charge during a 12-month period, is a violation of
40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and Condition 25 of the Facility’s Title V Operating
Permit.

185. Réspondent’s violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 608 of the Act.

186. Respondent’s violation of Condition‘ 25 of the Facility’s Title V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Program and Title V
of the Act.

Count 10

187. Paragraphs 1-186 are repeated and re-alleged Vas if set forth fully

herein.

188. Respondent’s failure to identify intermittent compliance and certify
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intermittent compliance with the CFC Regulations, as described in Counts 5
through 9 above, in its 2006 annual compliance certification is a violation of 6
NYCRR 201-6.5(e) and Condition.2-18 of the Facility’s Title V Operating Permit.
189. Respondent’s violation of 6 NYCRR 201-6.5(e) is a violation of
Sections 114 and 502 of the 'Ac‘t.
190. Respondent’s violation of Condition 2-18 of the Facility’s Title.V
Operating Permit is a violation of the NYS Title V Operating Permit and Title V of

the Act.

Proposed Civil Penalty

Section 113(d) of the Act provides that the Administrator may assess a
civil administrative penalty of up to $25,000 per day for each violation of the Act.
The Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 (DCIA) requires EPA to
periodically adjust its civil monetary penalties for .inflation‘. On December 31,

1996, February 13, 2004, and January 7, 2009, EPA adopted regulations
enﬁtled Civil Monetary Penalties Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19
(Part 19). The DCIA provides that the maximum civil penalty per day should be
adjusted up to $27,500 for violations that occurred from January 30, 1997
through March 15, 2004, up to $32,500 for violations that occurred after
March 15, 2004 through January 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 for violations that
occurred after January 12, 2009. Part 19 provides that the maximum civil
penalty should be upwardly adjusted 10% for violations which occurred on or

after January 30, 1997, furthér adjusted an additional 17.23% for violations
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which 6ccurred March 15, 2004 through January 12, 2009, for a total of 28.95%
and further adjusted an additional 9.83% for violations that occurred aﬁer
January 12, 2009.

In determining the amount of penalty to be assessed, Section 113(e) of
the Act requires that the Administrator consider the size of the business, the
economic impact of the penalty on the business, the violator’s full compliance
history and good faith efforts to comply, the duration of the violation as
" established by any credible evidence, the payment by the violator of pénalties
previously assessed for the same violation, the economic benefit of
noncompliance, the seriousness of the violation., and othelr factors as justice
may require.

Respondent’s violations alleged in Counts 1 through 10, result in
Respondent being subjéct to the assessment of administrative penalties
pursuant to Section 113(d) of the Act. The proposed penalty has been prepared
in accordance with the criteria in Section 113(e) of the Act, and in accordance
with the guidelines set forth in EPA's "Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil
Penalty Policy" (CAA Penalty Policy), which reflects EPA’s application of the
factors set forth in Section 113(e) of the Act, and EPA’s CAA Penalty Policy for
Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82, Subpart F. Maintenance, Se:rvice, Repair, and
Disposal of Appliances Containing Refrigerant, Appendix X of the CAA Penalty
Policy (CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X).

EPA proposes a total penalty of $255,612 for all counts alleged in this

Complaint. Below are brief narratives explaining the reasoning behind the
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penalty proposed, along with the reasoning behind various general penalty
factors and adjustments that were used in the calculation of the total penalty

amount.

Preliminary Deterrence Component of Proposed Penalty

The CAA Penalty Policy indicates that the preliminary deterrence amount
is determined by combining the gravity component énd the economic benefit
component of the penalty calculated. The gravity component includes, as
applicable, penalties for actual harm, importance to the regulatory scheme, size
of violator and adjustments to the gravity component for degree of willfulness or
negligenc_e, degree of cooperation, prompt reporting, correction, history of non-
compliance and environmental damage. Actual harm is calculated, where
applicable, in accordance with the level of the violation, the toxicity of pollutant,

the sensitivity of the environment, and the length of time of violation.

Gravity Component |

Count 1: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 11

EPA proposes a penalty of $750 for Respondent’s failure to document
how much R-22 was added to Unit 11 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k). The
“Potential Environmental Harm” is minor because the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “minor” for recordkeéping
requirements not properly followed. The “Extent of Deviation” is minor because

the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of “minor” when
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a respondent deviaﬁes somewhat from the regulation because most, if not all
important aspects of the requirernent are met. Respondent indicated an addition
of R-22, but did not document the quantity, therefore EPA determined the extent
of deviation to be minor. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each
form an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations classified as
minor/minor, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a
$750 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violation of
the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations as applicable
requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $975.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $282 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $1,257 for

Count 1.

Count 2: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(2) and the Facility's Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26

EPA proposes a penalty of $15,000 for Respondent’s failure to perform a
leak repair to Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. §' 82.156(i)(2). The “Potential
Environrnental Harm” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X
provides for an assessment of “major” for not repairing leaks of equipment
normally containing fifty (50) pounds or more of class Il refrigerant. The “Extent

of Deviation” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for
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an assessment of “major” when a respondent deviates from requirements of thé
regulation to such an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements
are not met, resultiﬁg in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined
the Extent of Deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of
Deviation each form an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations
classified as major/major, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1
provides for a $15,000 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for
the violation of the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations as
applicable requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $19,500.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violatio‘ns occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $5,645 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $25,145 for
Count 2.

Count 3: ~ Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26

EPA proposes a penalty of $15,000 for Respondent’s failure to conduct an
initial verification test on Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3). The
“Potential Environmental Harm” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “major” for the failure to follow work
practice requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156. The “Extent of Deviation” is major

because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
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“‘major” when a respondent deviates from requirements of the regulation to such
an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements are not met,
resulting in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined the extent of
deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each form
an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations classified as
major/major, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a
$15,000 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violétion
of the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations as applicable
requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $19,500.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $5,645 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation isA$25,145 for
Count 3.

Count 4: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and the Facility’s TiteV . -
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26 '

EPA proposes a penalty of $15,000 for Respondent’s failure to conduct a
follow-up verification test on Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3). The
“Potential Environmental Harm” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “major” for the failure to follow work
practice requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156. The “Extent of Deviation” is rﬁajor

because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
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“major” when a respondent de\}iates from requirements of the regulation to such
an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements are not met,
resulting in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined the extent of
deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each form
an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations classified as
major/maijor, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a
$15,000 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violation
of the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations als applicable
requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $19,500.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA pro‘peses a $5,645 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred dUring
this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $25,145 for

Count 4.

Count 5: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26

EPA proposes a penalty of $750 for Respondent’s failure to document
how much R-22 was added to Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k). The
“Potential Environmental Harm” is minor becaﬁse the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “minor” for recordkeeping
requirements not properly followed. The “Extent of Deviation” is minor because

the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of “minor” when
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a respondent deviates somewhat from the regulation because most, if not all
important aspects of the requirement are met. Respondent indicated an addition
of R-22, but did not document the quantity, therefore EPA determined the extent
of deviation to be minor. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each
form an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. Fof violations classified as
minor/minor, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a
$750 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violation of
the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations as applicable
requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $975.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through January
12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $282 inflationary adjustment which reflects
the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred .d.uring this period of

time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $1,257 for Count 5.

Count 6: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26

EPA proposes a penalty of $3,000 for Respondent’s failure to conduct an
initial verification test on Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3). The
‘Potential Environmental Harm” is majof because the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “major” for the failure to follow work
practice requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156. The “Extent of Deviation” is major

because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
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“major” when a respondent deviates from requirements of the regulation to such
an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements are not met,
resulting in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined the extent of
deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each form
an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations classified as
major/major, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 2 provides for a
$3,000 penalty. The CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty provides that EPA
may use matrix 2 values for repeat violations of the same appliance. The
proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violation of the Title V condition,
which included the CFC Regulations as applicable requirements, resulting in a
proposed penalty of $3,900.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $1,129 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
this period of tirne. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $5,029 for

Count 6.

Count?7: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for Unit 26

EPA proposes a penalty of $3,000 for Respondent’s failure to conduct a
follow-up verification test on Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3). The

“Potential Environmental Harm” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy,
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~ Appendix X provides for an assessment of “major” for the failure to follow work
practice requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156. The “Extent of Deviatidn” is major
because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
“mvajor” when a}respondent deviates from requirements of the regulation to such
an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements are not met,
resulting in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined the extent of
deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each form
an axis of the penalty assessment matrix. For violations classified as
major/major, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 2 provides for a
$3,000 penalty. The CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty provides t‘hat EPA
may use matrix 2 values for repeat violations of the same appliance. The
proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the violation of the Title V condition,
which included the CFC Regulations as applicable requirements, resulting in a
proposed penalty of $3,900.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
- component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $1,129 inflationary adjustment
which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $5,029 for

Count 7.
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Count 8: Violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 25 for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,
Circuit #2

EPA proposes a penalty of $750 for Respondent’s failure to document
how much R-22 was added to the Chilled Water Chiller Unit, Circuit #2 as
required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.166(k). The “Potential Environmental Harm” is minor
ble,cause the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
“minor” for recordkeepirig requirements not properly followed. The “Extent of
Deviétion” is minor because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an
assessment of “minor” when a respondent deviates somewhat from the
regulation because most, if not all important aspects of the requirement are met.
Respondent indicated an addition of R-22, but did not document the quantity,
therefore EPA determined the extent of deviation to be minor. The Potential for
Harm and Extent of Deviation éach form an axis of the pénalty assessment
matrix. .For violations classified as minor/minor, the CAA Penalty PoI‘icy,
Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a $750 penalty. The proposed penalty
was then adjusted 30% for the violation of the Title V condition, which included
the CFC Regulations as applicable requirements, resulting in a proposed penélty
of $975.

In addition, the DCIA and Paft 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through January
12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $282 inflationary adjustment which reflects

the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during this period of
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time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $1,257 for Count 8.

Count 9: Violation of 40 C.F.R. & 82.156(i)}(3) and the Facility’s Title VV
Permit Condition 25 for the Chilled Water Chiller Unit,
Circuit #2

EPA proposes a penalty of $15,000 for Respondent’s failure to conduct a
follow-up verification test on Unit 26 as required in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156(i)(3). The
“Potential Environmental Harm” is major because the CAA Penalty Policy,
Appendix X provides for an assessment of “major” for the failure to follow work
practice requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 82.156. The “Extent of Deviation” is major
because the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X provides for an assessment of
“major” when a respondent deviates from requirements of the regulation to such
an extent that most or important aspects of the requirements are not met,
resulting in substantial noncompliance, therefore EPA determined the extent of
deviation to be major. The Potential for Harm and Extent of Deviation each form
an axis of the penalty assessment vmatrix. For violations classified as
major/major, the CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X penalty matrix 1 provides for a
$15,000 penalty. The proposed penalty was then adjusted 30% for the‘ violation
of the Title V condition, which included the CFC Regulations as applicable
requirements, resulting in a proposed penalty of $19,500.

In addition, the DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity
component 28.95% for violations occurring on March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009. Therefore, EPA proposes a $5,645 inflationary adjustment

which reflects the 28.95% inflation adjustment for violations that occurred during
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this period of time. The total proposed penalty for this violation is $25,145 for

Count 9.

Count 10: Violation of 6 NYCRR 201-6.5(e) and the Facility’s Title V
Permit Condition 2-18 for year 2006

EPA proposes a penalty of $10,000 for Respondent's failure to identify
non-compliance and certify the non-compliance with the CFC Regulations in its
2006 annual compliance certification as provided by 6 NYCRR 201-6.5(e) and
the Facility’s Title V Permit Conditio‘n 2-18. In the “Importance to Regulatory
Scheme,” the CAA Penalty Policy provides for an assessment of $5,000 -
$15,000 for an incomplete repoﬁ or notice. EPA proposes $10,000 for
Respondent’s failure to identify non-compliance and certify the non-compliance
with the CFC Regulations. |

The DCIA and Part 19 direct EPA to adjust the gravity component 28.95%
for violations -occurring on March 15, 2004 through January 12, 2009. EPA
proposes $2,895, which is a 28.95% inflation adjustment for the proposed
penalty for this violation resulting in a total proposed penalty of $12,895 for

Count 10.

Size of Violator

The CAA Penalty Policy directs that a penalty be proposed that takes into
account the size of violator, determined by the violator’s net worth. Based on
information obtained, Respondent’s net worth is estimated at $961,000,000

based on the 2009 Dun & Bradstreet Report. The CAA Penalty Policy,
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Appendix X states that the gravity component will be scaled for size of violator
using a multiplier. The CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X directs that for
businesses with a net worth of more than $300,000, the net worth be divided by
$300,000 to determine the multiplier. In accordance with the Policy, generally,
the size of violator component should not be more than 50% of the penalty (i.e., |
no multiplier greater than‘2 would be used). The penalty for environmental
harm/importance to regulatory scheme multiplied by the size of violator factor

becomes the adjusted gravity component.

Title V Adjustment

The CAA Penalty Policy indicates that the gravity component of a penalty
can be aggravated up to 100% in consideration of, among other things, the
extent} to which the violator knew of the legal requirement. In this instance,
Respondent included its obligation to comply with the CFC Regulations in its
Title V application and was further put on notice of the requirements in its Title V
Operating Permit. The permit was in effect throughout the entire period of time in
which thé CFC Regulation violations, alleged here, occurred. Therefore, in
accordance with the Policy and Region 2’s practice with regard to Title V
violations, EPA proposes the penalties for the alleged violations of the CFC

Regulations be aggravated by 30% (or by $40,950).
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Inflation Adjustment

Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act (DCIA), 31 U.S.C.
§§ 3701 et seq., and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the regulation promulgated pursuant to
the DCIA, the CAA Penalty Policy “preliminary deterrence” amount should be
adjusted 10% for inflation for all violations occurring January 30, 1997 through
March 15, 2004, further adjusted an additional 17.23% for all violations occurring
on March 15, 2004 until January 12, 2009, and further adjusted an additional
9.83% for all violations occurring after January 12, 2009. For purposes of this
Complaint, the total adjustment is 28.95%. Respondent’s violations began, as
early as, April 2004 and continue to August 2006. Inflation adjustments for
violations were done in accordance with the DCIA requirements, which resulted

in a total inflation adjustment of $567,162.

"Economic Benefit

In addition to the gravity component of the proposed penalties, the CAA
Penalty Policy directs that EPA determine the economic benefit derived from
noncompliance. The CAA Penalty Policy explains that the economic benefit
component of the penalty should be derived by calculating the am.ount the
violator benefited from delayed and/or avoided costs. EPA calculates the
economic benefit using a computer program that is called the BEN Model.
The CAA Penalty Policy, Appendix X states that although the CAA Penalty Policy
indicates that it is EPA’s goal to collect the violator's economic benefit and that

EPA may elect not to assess an economic benefit component in enforcement
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actions where the violator's economic benefit is less than $5,000 énd in
Section 608 enforcement actions, it states that EPA may elect not to assess an
economic benefit component where the economic benefit is less than $500.

The Region calculated the economic benefit component of the 'proposed
penalty, which reflects the avoided cost for leak verification testing. Upon
reviewing the EPA CAA Penalty Policy and EPA préctice in national IPR leak
violation cases, the Region determined the cost a\)oided for leak verification
testing is $200 per failed leak verification test. The Region determined that there
were five (5) failed tests, therefore the Region calculated the total economic
benefit Qomponent as $1,000.

In summary, EPA proposes a total penalty of $255,612 for the violations

alieged in this Complaint.

Notice of Opportunity to Request a Hearing

The hearing in this matter is subject to the Administrative Procedure Act,
'5 U.S.C. §§ 552 et seq. The procedures for this matter are found in EPA's
Consolidated Rules of Practice, a copy of which is enclosed with the transmittal
of this Complaint. References to specific procedures in this Complaint are
intended to inform you of your right to contest the allegations 6f the Complaint
and the proposed penalty and do not supersede any requirement of the
. Consolidated Rules of Practice.
You have a right to request a hearing: (1) to contest any material facts set

forth in the Complaint; (2) to contend that the amount of the penalty proposed in
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the Complaint is inappropriate; or (3) to seek a judgment with respect to the law
applicable to this matter. In order to request a hearing you must file a written
Answer to this Complaint along with the request for a hearing with the EPA
Regional Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) days of your receipt of this Complaint.
The Answer and request for a hearing must be filed at the following address:

Karen Maples

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 2

290 Broadway - 16th Floor

New York, New York 10007-1866

A copy of the Answer and the request for a hearing, as well as copies of

all other papers filed in this rnatter, are to be served on EPA to the attention of
EPA counsel at the following address:

Kara E. Murphy

Assistant Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel, Air Branch

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 2

290 Broadway - 16th Floor

New York, New York 10007-1866

Your Answer should, clearly and directly, admit, deny, or explain each

factual allegation contained in this Cornplaint with regard to which you have any
knowledge. If you have no knowledge of a particular factual allegation of the
Complaint, you must so state and the allegation will be deemed to be denied.
The Answer shall also state: (1) the circumstances or arguments which you
allege constitute the grounds of a defense; (2) whether a hearing is requested;

and (3) a concise statement of the facts which you intend to place at issue in the

hearing.
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If you fail to serve and file an Answer to this Complaint within thirty (30)
days of its receipt, Complainant may file a motion for default. A finding of default
constitutes an admission of the facts alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of
your right to a hearing. The total proposed penalty becomes due and payable
without further proceedings thirty (30) days after the issue date of a Default

Order.

Settlement Conference

EPA encourages all parties against whom the assessment of civil
penalties is proposed to pursue the possibilities of settlement by informal
conferences. However, conferring informally with EPA in pursuit of settlement
does not extend the time allowed to answer the Complaint and to request a
hearing. Whether or not you intend to request a hearing, you may confer
informally with the EPA concerning the alleged violations or the amount of the
proposed penalty. If settlement is reached, it will be in the form of a written
Consent Agreement which will be forwarded to the Regional Administrator with a
proposed Final Order. You may contact EPA counsel, Kara E. Murphy at
(212) 637-3211 or at the address listed above, to discuss settlement. If
Respondent is represented by legal counsel in this matter, Respondent's counsel

should contact EPA.
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Payment of Penalty in lieu of Answer, Hearing and/or Settlement
Instead of filing an Answer, requesting a hearing, and/or requesting an
informal settlement conference, you may choose to pay the full amount of the
penalty proposed in the Complaint. Such payment should be made by a
cashier's or certified check payable to the Treasurer, United States of America,
marked with the docket number and the name of the Respondent(s) which
appear on the first page of this Complaint. The check must be mailed to:
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St Louis, MO 63197-9000
A copy of your letter transmitting the check and a copy of the check must
be sent simultaneously‘ to EPA counsel assigned to this case at the address
provided under the section of this Complaint entitled Notice of Opportunity to
‘Request a Hearing. Payment of the proposed penalty in this fashion does not

relieve one of responsibility to comply with any and all requirements of the

Clean Air Act.

Dated: Rl ‘; 200 <—/\/—7_/

Dore LaPosta, Director
Division of Enforcement and
Compliance Assistance
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To:

CcC.

Philip J. Faraci

President and COO
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, NY 14650

Mark E. Miles
Health, Safety and Environment

5" Floor, Building 56, Kodak Park

Eastman Kodak Company
Rochester, NY 14652-4543

Dr. Jeffrey R. Neff

Director, Global Capture Flow
Director, Kodak Rochester Sites
Vice President, Film Products Group
343 State Street

Rochester, NY 14650

Robert Stanton, Director

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Colleen McCarthy, Air Counsel

Bureau of Stationary Sources

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
625 Broadway

Albany, NY 12233

Thomas Marriott, Regional Air Pollution Control Engineer

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519

Leo Bracci, Associate Attorney

Legal Affairs

New York State Department of Environmental Conservatlon Region 8
6274 E. Avon-Lima Road

Avon, NY 14414-9519
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that | have this day caused to be mailed a copy of the
foregoing Complaint, bearing the docket number CAA-02-2009-1212, and a copy
of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, by FedEX, to:

Philip J. Faraci

President and COO
Eastman Kodak Company
343 State Street
Rochester, NY 14650

| hand-carried the original and a copy of the foregoing Complaint to the

office of the Regional Hearing Clerk, United States Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 2.

Dated: Apri{ 4 ZOOCI | L%/Zﬂ_, (G
New York, New York Kara E. Murphy




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that | have this day caused to be mailed a copy of the
foregoing Complaint, bearing the docket number CAA-02-2003-1212, and a copy
of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, by FedEX, to:

Mark E. Miles

Health, Safety and Environment
5" Floor, Building 56, Kodak Park
Eastman Kodak Company
Rochester, NY 14652-4543

| hand-carried the original and a copy of the foregoing Complaint to the

office of the Regional Hearing Clerk, United States Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 2.

Dated: prDrr[ ?L 2004 %L F
New York, New York Kara E. Murphy 4




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that | have this day caused to be mailed a copy of the
foregoing Complaint, bearing the docket number CAA-02-2009-1212, and a copy
of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, by FedEx, to:

Dr. Jeffrey R. Neff

Director, Global Capture Flow
Director, Kodak Rochester Sites
Vice President, Film Products Group
343 State Street

Rochester, NY 14650

| hand-carried the original and a copy of the foregoing Complaint to the

office of the Regional Hearing Clerk, United States Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 2.

Dated:_ Apnit 4, 2007 Aha E .
New York, New York Kara E. Murphy




